

Sustainability Statement

139-141 Queens Crescent

For Suresh Patel

July 2016

XCO2 energy

w: www.xco2energy.com :: e: mail@xco2energy.com t: +44 (0) 20 7700 1000 :: f: +44 (0) 20 7183 6620 17-18 Hayward's Place :: Clerkenwell :: London :: EC1R 0EQ



Contents

Executive Summary	3
Site	6
Planning Policies	7
Camden Core Strategy 2010	7
Camden Development Policies 2010	8
Camden Planning Guidance - Sustainability CPG3 - 2013	9
The London Plan	10
Proposed Sustainable Design & Construction Measures	13
Energy Hierarchy Summary	17
Demand Reduction (Be Lean)	18
Heating and Cooling Infrastructure (Be Clean)	19
Renewable Energy (Be Green)	20
Conclusion	22

About us:

XCO2 Energy are a low-carbon consultancy working in the built environment. We are a multi-disciplinary company consisting of engineers, environmental experts and architects, with specialists including CIBSE low carbon consultants, Code for Sustainable Homes, EcoHomes and BREEAM assessors and LEED accredited professionals.

	lssue 01	lssue 02	lssue 03	Issue 04
Remarks	Draft			
Prepared by	SL			
Checked by	КМ			
Authorised by	RM			
Date	04/07/2016			
Project reference	8_764			





Executive Summary

This sustainability report outlines the sustainability strategy and summarises the energy performance and carbon dioxide emissions for the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent, in line with the requirements set out by the London Plan and the London Borough of Camden.

The scheme will include the construction of 4 new dwellings (1 x 2 bed and 3 x 1 bed) as an extension onto the existing building.

This report is divided into two parts:

- Planning Policies & Sustainability Measures in response to Planning Policies; and
- Energy Hierarchy Summary

The Policy section provides an overview of the site and planning policies applicable to this development in accordance with the London Borough of Camden's planning policies and the London Plan. The Sustainability Measures section presents the sustainable design and construction principles adopted in the scheme and specifically gives responses to the GLA's Sustainable Design and Construction SPG and Camden sustainability guidance.

The second part of the report, The Energy Hierarchy Summary, then demonstrates how the London Plan and Camden energy policies have been met, giving a breakdown of the carbon emission reductions based on a Part L 2013 baseline building.

Policy and Sustainability Standards

In summary, the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent exceeds the targets set out by Camden Council and the Greater London Authority (GLA). The development is expected to achieve the necessary sustainability requirements within the London Plan's Sustainable Design and Construction SPG and Camden Council's planning policies.

The development has considered and incorporated the following sustainability elements within the design:

Resource management

- Land
- Site layout and building design
- Energy and carbon dioxide emissions
- Renewable energy
- Water efficiency
- Materials and waste
- Nature conservation and biodiversity

Adapting to climate change and greening the city

- Tackling increased temperature and drought
- Increasing green cover and trees
- Flooding

Pollution management

- Land contamination
- Air pollution
- Noise
- Light pollution
- Water pollution



The London Plan's Energy Hierarchy

The methodology used to determine the CO₂ emissions is in accordance with the London Plan's three-step Energy Hierarchy (Policy 5.2A) outlined below:

1. Be Lean - use less energy

The first step addresses reduction in energy use, through the adoption of sustainable design and construction measures.

In accordance with this strategy, the proposed development will incorporate a range of energy efficiency measures including levels of insulation significantly exceeding current building regulations (2013) requirements, the installation of high performance glazing and energy efficient lighting. The implementation of these measures would potentially reduce regulated CO₂ emissions as far as is feasible given the restraints of the site (retained existing roof to form the floor of the first floor flats).

2. Be Clean - supply energy efficiently

The second strategy takes into account the efficient supply of energy, by prioritising decentralised energy generation.

The London Heat Map indicates that no existing district heating networks are situated within close proximity of the site. For the specific scale of development, CHP is not deemed a feasible option.

Energy efficient individual combi gas boilers are proposed for each residential unit for efficient energy supply for Space heating and Domestic Hot Water (DHW). Therefore, there is no further reduction of CO_2 emissions at the Be Clean stage of the energy hierarchy.

3. Be Green - use renewable energy

The third strategy covers the use of renewable technologies.

A feasibility study was carried out for the development and a range of renewable technologies were analysed. The analysis included a biomass heating system, ground-source heat pumps, air-source heat pumps, photovoltaic panels, solar thermal system, and wind turbines.

The analysis identified photovoltaic solar panels as the most suitable technology for this development. The installation of 18m² of PV panels with a rated output of 2.7 kWp will reduce the development's regulated CO₂ emissions by 26.1%.

In total, the development is expected to reduce regulated CO_2 emissions by 23.9% when compared with a notional building built to current Part L Building Regulations (2013), which is a significant saving for a development of this nature.

Conclusion

The diagram below provides a summary of the regulated CO_2 savings at each stage of the London Plan Energy Hierarchy. Overall, the development will achieve a regulated CO_2 saving of 23.9% beyond Part L 2013 baseline.













Site

The proposed site is located on the northern side of Queens Crescent, on the corner with Gilden Crescent within the London Borough of Camden, in between Primrose Hill and Hampstead Heath.

The proposed scheme comprises the construction of 4 new dwellings as an extension onto the existing building at 139-141 Queens Crescent. The existing building will not form part of this application.

The approximate site location and boundary is shown in the figure below.



Approximate site location of 139-141 Queens Crescent





Planning Policies

This report outlines the sustainability related strategies and policies for the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent, as set out by the London Borough of Camden's planning documents as well as the London Plan, Further Alterations to the London Plan (March 2015) and Housing Standards Minor Alterations To The London Plan (March 2016), herein referred to as The London Plan.

Camden Core Strategy 2010

The Camden Core Strategy sets out the Council's key planning policies and is a central part of their Local Development Framework (LDF). The pertinent sustainability excerpts are inserted below:

CS13-Tackling climate change through promoting higher environmental standards

Reducing the effects of and adapting to climate change

The Council will require all development to take measures to minimise the effects of, and adapt to, climate change and encourage all developments to meet the highest feasible environmental standards that are financially viable during construction and occupation by:

a) Ensuring patterns of land use that minimise the need to travel by car and help support local energy networks;

b) Promoting the efficient use of land and buildings;

c) Minimising carbon emissions from the redevelopment, construction and occupation of buildings by implementing, in order, all of the elements of the following energy hierarchy:

- 1. Ensuring developments use less energy,
- 2. Making use of energy from efficient sources, such as the King's Cross, Gower Street, Bloomsbury and proposed Euston Road decentralised energy networks;
- 3. Generating renewable energy on-site; and

d) Ensuring buildings and spaces are designed to cope with, and minimise the effects of, climate change.

The Council will have regard to the cost of installing measures to tackle climate change as well as the cumulative future costs of delaying reductions in carbon dioxide emissions.

Water and surface water flooding

We will make Camden a water efficient borough and minimise the potential for surface water flooding by:

h) making sure development incorporates efficient water and foul water infrastructure;

i) requiring development to avoid harm to the water environment, water quality or drainage systems and prevents or mitigates local surface water and downstream flooding, especially in areas up-hill from, and in, areas known to be at risk from surface water flooding such as South and West Hampstead, Gospel Oak and King's Cross.

CS18 – Dealing with our waste and encouraging recycling

The Council will seek to make Camden a low waste borough. We will:

b) make sure that developments include facilities for the storage and collection of waste and recycling.

 Camden Core Strategy 2010-2025

 Local Development Framework

Camden Development Policies 2010

In addition to the Core Strategy Document the Camden Development Policies also forms part of the LDF. The policy relating to sustainability is listed below:

DP22 – Promoting sustainable design and construction

The Council will require development to incorporate sustainable design and construction measures. Schemes must:

a) demonstrate how sustainable development principles have been incorporated into the design and proposed implementation; and

b) incorporate green or brown roofs and green walls wherever suitable.

The Council will require development to be resilient to climate change by ensuring schemes include appropriate climate change adaptation measures, such as:

f) summer shading and planting;
g) limiting run-off;
h) reducing water consumption;
i) reducing air pollution; and
j) not locating vulnerable uses in basements in flood prone areas.

DP23 – Water

The Council will require developments to reduce their water consumption, the pressure on the combined sewer network and the risk of flooding by:

a) incorporating water efficient features and equipment and capturing, retaining and re-using surface water and grey water on-site;

b) limiting the amount and rate of run-off and waste water entering the combined storm water and sewer network through the methods outlined in part a) and other sustainable urban drainage methods to reduce the risk of flooding; c) reducing the pressure placed on the combined storm water and sewer network from foul water and surface water run-off and ensuring developments in the areas identified by the North London Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and shown on Map 2 as being at risk of surface water flooding are designed to cope with the potential flooding;

d) ensuring that developments are assessed for upstream and downstream groundwater flood risks in areas where historic underground streams are known to have been present; and

d) encouraging the provision of attractive and efficient water features.

The Camden Local Plan (2016) is currently undergoing review and consultation before it is issued. The development at 139-141 Queens Crescent will aim to follow the Sustainability and climate change sections within the plan irrespective of the fact that it has not yet been formally issued.

> Camden Development Policies 2010-2025 Local Development Framework











Camden Planning Guidance - Sustainability CPG3 - 2013

The Camden Planning Guidance support the policies set out in the Local Development Framework (LDF). While the Camden LDF contains policies relating to sustainability in their Core Strategy and Development Policies documents, the Council also has a separate planning guidance specific to sustainability.

The sections that will be covered by the following sections of this Sustainability Statement are listed below:

The energy hierarchy

All new developments are to be designed to minimise carbon dioxide emissions by being as energy efficient as is feasible and viable.

Energy efficiency: new buildings

All new developments are to be designed to minimise carbon dioxide emissions by being as energy efficient as is feasible and viable.

Decentralised energy networks and combined heat and power

Development should follow the Energy Hierarchy 1. use less energy

2. supply energy efficiently

3. use renewable energy

Renewable Energy

All developments are to target at least a 20% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions through the installation of on-site renewable energy technologies. Special consideration will be given to heritage buildings and features to ensure that their historic and architectural features are preserved.

Water Efficiency

The Council expects all developments to be designed to be water efficient by minimising water use and maximising the re-use of water. This includes new and existing buildings.

Sustainable use of materials

Major developments are anticipated to be able to achieve 15-20% of the total value of materials used to be derived from recycled and reused sources.

Sustainability assessment tools

Developments are anticipated to be able to achieve BREEAM 'Excellent' from 2013 onwards and at least 60% of Energy and Water credits and 40% of Materials credits.

Brown roofs, green roofs and green walls

The Council will expect all developments to incorporate brown roofs, green roofs and green walls unless it is demonstrated this is not possible or appropriate. This includes new and existing buildings. Special consideration will be given to historic buildings to ensure historic and architectural features are preserved.

Flooding

Developments must not increase the risk of flooding, and are required to put in place mitigation measures where there is known to be a risk of flooding.

Adapting to climate change

All development is expected to consider the impact of climate change and be designed to cope with the anticipated conditions.





The London Plan

The London Plan requires compliance with the following policies relating to climate change:

- Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions (refer to the supplementary Energy Report)
 - Development proposals should make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the following energy hierarchy:
 1 Be lean: use less energy
 2 Be clean: supply energy efficiently

3 Be green: use renewable energy

• The Mayor will work with boroughs and developers to ensure that major developments meet a 40% carbon dioxide emissions reduction in buildings. These targets are expressed as minimum improvements over the Target Emission Rate (TER) outlined in the national Building Regulations leading to zero carbon residential buildings from 2016 and zero carbon non-domestic buildings from 2019.

MAYOR OF LONDON



THE LONDON PLAN THE SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR LONDON CONSOLIDATED WITH ALTERATIONS SINCE 2011

MARCH 2015

The GLA update of the London Plan (April 2014) states that a 35 per cent carbon reduction target beyond Part L 2013 of the Building Regulations will be required for major developments - this is deemed to be broadly equivalent to the 40 per cent target beyond Part L 2010 of the Building Regulations, as set out in London Plan Policy 5.2 above. Compliance with the following relevant London Plan policies are addressed within sections found later in this report.

- Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
- Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction
- Policy 5.5 Decentralised Energy Networks
- Policy 5.6 Decentralised Energy in Development proposals
- Policy 5.7 Renewable Energy where feasible.
- Policy 5.9 Overheating and Cooling
- Policy 5.11 Green Roofs and Development site Environs
- Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management
- Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage
- Policy 5.15 Water use and Supplies
- Policy 5.18 Construction, Excavation and Demolition Waste

The proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent does not qualify as a major development, however, the design team have endeavoured to reduce CO_2 emissions on site through the use of energy efficient building fabric, construction and materials in line with the London Plan target.

Compliance with the aforementioned relevant London Plan policies is addressed within subsequent sections in this report.



GLA's Sustainable Design and Construction SPG (2014)

The Sustainable Design and Construction SPG (April 2014) provides additional information to support the implementation of the Mayor's London Plan. The SPG does not set new policy, but explains how policies in the London Plan should be carried through into action.

It is applicable to all major developments and building uses. It covers the following areas:

- Resource Management
- Adapting to Climate Change and Greening the City
- Pollution Management

This SPG provides a basis for sustainable design in London and is used as the overarching structure of this report. Where additional local policies are addressed by these areas this has also been indicated.

Housing SPG (2016)

This Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) provides guidance on the implementation of housing policies in the London Plan and it replaces the 2012 Housing SPG.

Part 2 *Quality* includes standards relating -among others- to the environmental quality of new housing and is most relevant within the context of this report.

Energy Planning - GLA Guidance on preparing energy assessments (2016)

This document is an update to the previous version of the Energy Planning Guidance (2015) and is mainly aimed at:

- Clarifying energy targets and baselines in the context of Government announcements regarding zero carbon policy; and
- Clarifying the hierarchy in London Plan Policy 5.6 and situations where CHP is or is not considered appropriate for developments.



SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE

APRIL 2014

LONDON PLAN 2011 IMPLEMENTATION FRAMEWORK

MAYOR OF LONDON



Housing Standards Review

The government announced the conclusion to the Housing Standards Review on 27 March 2015. The review aimed to simplify government regulations and standards into one key set, driven by Building Regulations.

As an outcome from the Deregulation Bill (2015) the written ministerial statement withdrew the Code for Sustainable Homes (in England) so Local Authorities will no longer require it as a planning condition for new approvals, nor will local authorities be able to enforce it. Where there are existing contractual arrangements, for example with Registered Social Landlords under the Affordable Funding Programme 2015-2018, it is possible to continue to register and certify against the Code.

One outcome from the review is dual level Building Regulations (Access and Water), which will give local authorities some choice to require developers to build to different standards than the minimum requirements. Furthermore, with appropriate evidence, local authorities can also use the new space standards which make up the new national technical standards. There will also be a new mandatory Building Regulation for security. The Building Regulations have come into play as of October 2015. The new dual level Building Regulations have been introduced because of clauses within the Deregulation Act. The Act also brings in a Clause which amends the Planning and Energy Act 2008 to prevent local authorities from requiring higher levels of energy efficiency than building regulations. This second clause has yet to be commenced, and the written ministerial statement sets out how this will be implemented in 2016.

As a result in the changes in Government Policy, the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent will not be assessed under the Code for Sustainable Homes. However, the dwellings have been designed in line with the Code for Sustainable Homes principles in mind to ensure wellbeing of occupants, and that impacts to the environment are minimised where possible.





Proposed Sustainable Design & Construction Measures

Introduction

This section presents the sustainability measures taken to address the three major issues identified within the London Plan's Sustainable Design and Construction SPG (April 2014).

The SPG is selected as the basis of this section as it better reflects the advances of the approach as to what constitutes sustainable development in Greater London, particularly in the absence of the Code. The design and construction issues relating to the principles of sustainable development, as identified within Camden's Planning Policy and prevalent throughout the London Plan, are also addressed.

1. Land

Ideally, a sustainable development utilises land that has been previously developed, thereby ensuring that 'green' spaces or areas of open public space are retained wherever possible. This is particularly important in urban centres where ideally 100% of a new development should utilise previously developed land and deliver improved density.

The site's building footprint is entirely on an existing building, therefore eliminating the need to build on new land.

The intention is to extend outwards and upwards by 1 storey to provide 4 new sustainable residential dwellings. The multiple benefits for the community will be complemented by the improvement of the quality of the built environment.

The proposal is therefore in agreement with the principles of sustainable development.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 1.1, 2.6, 2.7, 2.8, 2.9, 2.10, 2.11, 2.12, 2.13, 2.14, 2.15, 2.16, 2.17, 2.18, 3.3, 4.3, 6.1, 7.6 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13

2. Site Layout & Building Design

The building design seeks to maximise the potential use of natural systems, despite the constraints inherent in an urban context.

Access to daylight and sunlight in habitable spaces is considered optimum given the site constraints; the vast majority of living spaces (open plan living rooms and kitchens) are orientated to the south east or south west, and shall benefit from satisfactory levels of sunlight during the winter. The size of the openings follows good practice design and shall offer abundant daylight in all habitable spaces.

The effect of the development on the surrounding buildings has been minimised in terms of overshadowing effects.

Quality housing delivery is a key issue at national, regional and local levels, and the new scheme will deliver new, resource-efficient housing to the area.

The proposal will be designed in line with 'Secured by Design' principles, creating private and communal places that offer a sense of safety and are secure for future residents.

Further details on the design rationale and development in response to the specific setting and various needs of future occupants can be found in the accompanying Design and Access Statement.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 2.18, 4.3, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.6, 5.7, 5.9, 5.10, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.16, 5.18, 5.21, 6.1, 6.7, 6.9, 6.10, 6.11. 6.13, 7.1, 7.6, 7.14, 7.15, 7.18, 7.19, 7.21, 7.22 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13



An energy assessment (as part of this report) has been carried out for the development. The assessment was based on the Energy Hierarchy advocated in Policy 5.2 of the London Plan:

- 1. Be Lean: use less energy
- 2. Be Clean: supply energy efficiently
- 3. Be Green: use renewable energy

The assessment has indicated that there will be a regulated CO2 emissions saving of 23.9% for the proposed scheme once Lean, Clean and Green measures have been implemented.

At the 'Be Lean' stage, energy efficiency will be maximised through passive and active measures, including:

- Optimising daylight and maximising beneficial solar gain;
- Achieving an efficient building fabric with a high thermal mass, airtightness level and U-value below Building Regulation standards;
- Maximising the potential for natural ventilation;
- Energy efficient heating systems, Including low energy light fittings throughout the scheme.

There are no energy efficiency measures that will impact

carbon dioxide emissions at the 'Be Clean' phase, due to the lack of viability of a CHP decentralised heating system for a development of this scale. Connection to an existing district heating network is not currently feasible due to a lack of networks in the vicinity of the development.

 CO_2 emissions have been reduced further by the inclusion of photovoltaics, as oulined within the following sub-section.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8, 5.17 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13 Camden Development Policies: DP 22 Camden Sustainability CPG3

4. Renewable Energy

The proposed development will incorporate the installation of $18m^2$ of photovoltaic panels as a renewable energy source. The PV array will be placed horizontally to minimise visibility from street level.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.4, 5.7 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13 Camden Development Policies: DP 22 Camden Sustainability CPG3

5. Water Efficiency

Water efficiency is a key sustainability principle for the development, particularly in light of the risk to London's water supply associated with projected climate change. As such, the design team is seeking to achieve a reduction in water use for the building over typical domestic performance.

Water efficient sanitary fittings will be installed as standard; this includes WCs, wash hand basin taps, kitchen taps, showers, baths and any dishwashers, washing machines or washer/dryers.

The dwellings will aim to meet a water consumption target less than or equal to 105 litres/person/day, in line with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan (*Housing Standards Minor Alterations 2016*).

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.3, 5.13, 5.15 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13 Camden Development Policies: DP 23 Camden Sustainability CPG3





6. Materials and Waste

The materials specification will be important in terms of balancing the requirements of the design brief with the requirements for a building with a low environmental impact.

The architectural specification of the building envelope will seek to maximise the use of prefabricated elements. More than three of the key elements of the building envelope will achieve a rating of A+ to C in the BRE's *The Green Guide*.

In addition, at least 50% of the timber used will be sourced from accredited Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) or a Programme for the Endorsement of Forestry Certification (PEFC) source.

Internal finishes and paints will aim to be specified with due regard to their potential impact on the indoor air quality; certified low-VOC and lowformaldehyde products shall be preferred.

Sufficient space has been allowed for the storage of recyclable materials and waste within the kitchens of each new flat. Food waste bins will also be provided for each unit.

Waste generated during construction will be minimised through the implementation of the waste hierarchy.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.3, 5.20, 7.6, 7.14; Standard 22 & 23 of Housing SPG Camden Core Strategy: CS 18 Camden Sustainability CPG3

7. Nature Conservation & Biodiversity

The proposal site is entirely built/hardstanding and so there is no existing ecology. The roof is pitched and will incorporate photovoltaics so there is no scope to include a green roof or any other planting.

The proposed scheme will therefore be neutral in terms of the impact on existing and surrounding ecology.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.3, 7.19 Camden Core Strategy: CS 15





8. Tackling Increased Temperature and Drought

The potential risk of overheating will be mitigated by incorporating passive and active design measures.

a. *Minimising internal heat generation through energy efficient design:*

The dwellings will be served by individual heating systems therefore the heating distribution pipework will be held at a minimum. Heat sources and pipework will be sufficiently insulated to reduce heat dissipation in living spaces.

b. <u>Reducing the amount of heat entering the building</u> <u>in summer:</u>

Appropriately sized windows and shading from blinds and curtains will reduce solar gains into occupied spaces during the summer.

c. <u>Use of thermal mass and high ceilings to manage the</u> <u>heat within the building:</u>

During peak summer periods the thermal mass of the building will absorb and store excess heat. The building will release its heat in the cooler evenings to allowing for cooler internal spaces dampening the peak diurnal weather conditions.

d. Passive ventilation:

The building has allowed for passive ventilation as the main strategy for providing fresh air and dissipating heat. The strategy for reducing potential overheating includes single-sided ventilation, cross ventilation and night purge ventilation.

e. Mechanical ventilation:

Mechanical ventilation has not been included within the ventilation strategy. Instead the development fully utilises natural ventilation to minimise energy consumption.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.3, 5.9, 5.15, 7.6 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13 Camden Development Policies: DP 22

9. Increasing Green Cover and Trees

The site is currently hardstanding in its entirety, with no areas of green cover or trees.

It would not be feasible to increase green cover for the site as there are no external areas available for any planting to occur and the pitched roof will be utilised for photovoltaics.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 2.18, 5.3, 5.10, 5.11, 7.21 Camden Core Strategy: CS 15

10. Flood Risk

According to the Environment Agency's Flood Risk Map, the site lies within a zone with low risk of flooding from rivers and sea (Zone 1). The site is also shown as being at low risk of flooding within Camden Council's Flood Risk Management Strategy.

The proposed scheme will not increase flood risk to adjacent properties as the post-development surface water run-off volume will be the same as the pre-developed site.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 5.3, 5.12, 5.13 Camden Core Strategy: CS 13 Camden Development Policies: DP 23 Camden Sustainability CPG3

11. Air Pollution

Plant equipment (gas boilers) will be selected that meets the air quality standards within the SPG Appendix 7.

Applicable Policies:

London Plan - 3.2, 5.3, 7.14 Camden Core Strategy: CS 18 Camden Sustainability CPG3





Energy Hierarchy Summary

The methodology employed to determine the potential CO_2 savings for this development is in accordance with the three step Energy Hierarchy outlined in the London Plan:

- Be Lean Improve the energy efficiency of the development
- Be Clean Supply as much of the remaining energy requirement with low-carbon technologies such as combined heat and power (CHP)
- Be Green Offset a proportion of the remaining carbon dioxide emissions using renewable technologies.

Energy calculations were carried out using the FSAP 2012 methodology for the residential units. This is in line with Building Regulations Part L 2013.

The data from the individual SAP calculations was combined in order to give site wide energy consumption and CO₂ emissions.





Demand Reduction (Be Lean)

Passive Design Measures

Enhanced Building Fabric

The heat loss of different building elements is dependent upon their U-value. The lower the Uvalue, the better the level of insulation of a particular element. A building with low U-values has a reduced heating demand during the cooler months.

The proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent will incorporate high levels of insulation and high-performance glazing on all of the facades to significantly reduce the demand for space heating (refer to the table below). The development's Part L U-value targets will be exceeded.

Residential U-Values (W/m²K)

Element	Building	Proposed	%	
	Regulations		Improvement	
Walls	0.30	0.15	50%	
Floor	0.25	0.2	20%	
Roof	0.20	0.10	50%	
Windows	2.0	1.3	35%	

Air Tightness

Heat loss may also occur due to air infiltration. Although this cannot be eliminated altogether, good construction detailing and the use of best practice construction techniques can minimise the amount of air infiltration into a building.

Current Part L Building Regulations (2013) sets a maximum air permeability rate of $10m^3/m^2$ at 50Pa. The development is likely to improve upon this to achieve at least $5m^3/m^2$ at 50Pa through the application of best practice construction techniques.

Orientation & Site Layout

Passive solar gain reduces the amount of energy required for space heating during the winter months. The building is designed to optimise passive solar gain by maximising glazing on the south-eastern and south-western facades where possible.

Lighting

The development has been designed to improve daylighting in all habitable spaces, as a way of improving the health and wellbeing of its occupants. All of the habitable rooms, such as living rooms, will benefit from good sized windows to increase the amount of daylight within the internal spaces.

Natural Ventilation

Natural ventilation will be used to provide fresh air to all residential units to minimise energy demand for ventilation. Extract fans will be provided in kitchens and bathrooms.

Overheating

The development has followed the London Plan Policy 5.9 cooling hierarchy and has been documented within the 'Proposed Sustainable Design & Construction Measures' section of this report.

Overheating risks shall be minimised by a combination of passive and active measures, including pipework insulation, internal shading devices, natural cross ventilation and thermal mass effects.

Active Design Measures

High Efficacy Lighting

The development intends to incorporate low energy lighting fittings throughout the development. 100% of all light fittings will be specified as low energy lighting, and will accommodate compact fluorescent (CFL's) luminaries and/or LEDs.

Internal areas which are not frequently used will be fitted with occupant sensors, whereas daylit areas will be fitted with daylight sensors.





Heating and Cooling Infrastructure (Be Clean)

Energy System Hierarchy

The energy system for the development has been selected in accordance with the London Plan decentralised energy hierarchy. The hierarchy listed in Policy 5.6 states that energy systems should consider:

- 1. Connection to existing heating and cooling networks
- 2. Site wide CHP network
- 3. Communal heating and cooling

Local supply of heat and power minimises distribution losses, thereby achieving a greater efficiency and reducing CO₂ emissions, when compared to the individual systems.

In a communal energy system, energy in the form of heat, cooling, and/or electricity is generated from a central source and distributed via a network to surrounding residencies and commercial units.

Connection to Existing Low Carbon Heat Distribution Networks

The London Heat Map identifies existing and potential opportunities for decentralised energy projects in London. It builds on the 2005 London Community Heating Development Study.

An excerpt from the London Heat Map below shows the energy demand for different areas. Darker shades of red signify areas where energy demand is high. The map also highlights any existing and proposed district heating systems within the vicinity of the development, as well as the areas identified with the potential to deploy decentralised heating (DH) networks.

A review of the map and publicly available information shows that there are currently no existing or proposed district heat networks within close proximity to the proposed site. Space heating and domestic hot water will be supplied by individual gas boilers within each dwelling.





Renewable Energy (Be Green)

Once the energy demand has been minimised, methods of generating low and zero carbon energy can be assessed. The renewable technologies to be considered for the development are:

- Biomass
- Photovoltaic panels
- Solar thermal panels
- Ground/water source heat pumps
- Air source heat pump
- Wind energy

The table below summarises the factors taken into account in determining the appropriate renewable technology for this project. This includes estimated lifetime, level of maintenance, and level of impact on external appearance. The final column indicates the feasibility of the technology in relation to the site conditions (10 being the most feasible and 0 being infeasible).

The feasibility study concludes that photovoltaic panels are the most feasible option for the site.

		139-141 Queens Crescent					
		Comments	Lifetime	Maintenance	Impact on External Appearance	Site Feasibility	
Biomass		Not adopted -burning of wood pellets releases high NOx emissions and there are limitations for their storage and delivery within an urban location.	20yrs	High	High	1	
PV		Adopted Technology	25yrs	Low	Med	8	
Solar Thermal		Not adopted -solar thermal array would require additional plumbing, space for hot water storage.	25yrs	Low	Med	3	
GSHP		Not adopted -the installation of ground loops require significant space, additional time at the beginning of the construction process and very high capital costs.	20yrs	Med	Low	1	
ASHP		Not adopted -ASHP evaporator units are located externally and produce noise which can be an issue in a residential location, especially at night.	20yrs	Med	Med	4	
Wind	×	Not adopted -wind turbines would achieve low CO ₂ savings in this site due to space limitations. In addition, they would have a significant visual impact on the neighbourhood.	25yrs	Med	High	1	



Photovoltaic Panels

Four types of solar cells are available on the market at present and these are mono-crystalline, polycrystalline, thin film and hybrid panels. Although mono-crystalline and hybrid cells are the most expensive, they are also the most efficient with an efficiency rate of 12-20%. Poly-crystalline cells are cheaper but they are less efficient (9-15%). Thin film cells are only 5-8% efficient but can be produced as thin and flexible sheets.

The feasibility study shows that photovoltaics are the most suitable renewable technology for this development for the following reasons:

- there is sufficient roof space to install enough PV modules to have a significant impact on carbon dioxide emissions
- the installation of photovoltaics is much simpler when compared to other renewable technologies
- photovoltaics sited on the roof areas are less visually instrusive when compared to other technologies, such as ASHPs and wind turbines

Proposed roof PV

Further to the reasons stated above, it has been decided that mono-crystalline PV is the most suitable option for the development, as it would have the least internal space requirement.

The image below presents a proposed PV roof plan.

It is proposed to place the PV panels perpendicularly to the pitched roof to minimise the visual impacts of the installations. $18m^2$ of 15% efficiency monocrystalline PV panels, rated at 2.7 kWp, would produce regulated CO₂ savings of 25.5% after the previous measures have been implemented, and 26.1% savings compared to the baseline emissions.



Indicative PV roof layout for the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent



Conclusion

Policy and Sustainability Standards

In summary, the proposed development at 139-141 Queens Crescent exceeds the targets set out by Camden Council and the Greater London Authority (GLA). The development is expected to achieve the necessary sustainability requirements within the London Plan's Sustainable Design and Construction SPG and Camden Council's planning policies.

Energy Hierarchy

In line with the London Plan's three step energy hierarchy the regulated CO_2 emissions for this development have been reduced by 23.9%, once energy efficiency measures and renewable technologies have been taken into account.

The tables on the following page provides a breakdown of the CO₂ savings made at each stage of the Energy Hierarchy. The reductions made through each step have been outlined below:

1. Be Lean - use less energy

The first step addresses reduction in energy use, through the adoption of sustainable design and construction measures.

In accordance with this strategy, the proposed development will incorporate a range of energy efficiency measures including levels of insulation significantly exceeding current building regulations (2013) requirements, the installation of high performance glazing and energy efficient lighting. The implementation of these measures would potentially reduce regulated CO₂ emissions as far as is feasible given the restraints of the site (retained existing roof to form the floor of the first floor flats).

2. Be Clean - supply energy efficiently

The second strategy takes into account the efficient supply of energy, by prioritising decentralised energy generation.

The London Heat Map indicates that no existing district heating networks are situated within close proximity of the site. For the specific scale of development, CHP is not deemed a feasible option.

Energy efficient individual combi gas boilers with flue heat recovery are proposed for each residential unit for efficient energy supply for Space heating and Domestic Hot Water (DHW). Therefore there is no further reduction of CO_2 emissions at the Be Clean stage of the energy hierarchy.

3. Be Green - use renewable energy

The third strategy covers the use of renewable technologies.

A feasibility study was carried out for the development and a range of renewable technologies were analysed. The analysis included a biomass heating system, ground-source heat pumps, air-source heat pumps, photovoltaic panels, solar thermal system, and wind turbines.

The analysis identified photovoltaic solar panels as the most suitable technology for this development. The installation of 18m² of PV panels with a rated output of 2.7 kWp will reduce the development's regulated CO₂ emissions by 26.1%.

In total, the development is expected to reduce regulated CO_2 emissions by 23.9% when compared with a notional building built to current Part L Building Regulations (2013), which is a significant saving for a development of this nature.

